
CITY OF ESCONDIDO 

Planning Commission and Staff Seating 

ADAM FINESTONE 
City Planner 

OWEN TUNNELL 
Assistant City Engineer 

STAN WEILER 
Commissioner 

CARRIE MECARO 
Commissioner 

RICK PAUL 
Vice-Chair 

KATHARINE BARBA 
Chair 

BARRY SPEER 
Commissioner 

DAO DOAN 
Commissioner 

DAVID BARBER 
Commissioner 

DARE DELANO 
Senior Deputy City Attorney 

JESSICA ENGEL 
Minutes Clerk 

AGENDA 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

201 North Broadway 

City Hall Council Chambers 
7 p.m. 

 

July 26, 2022 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 7 p.m. 

B. FLAG SALUTE

C. ROLL CALL:

D. MINUTES: July 12, 2022
___________________________________________________________________________________

The Brown Act provides an opportunity for members of the public to directly address the Planning Commission on any item of interest 
to the public before or during the Planning Commission's consideration of the item.  If you wish to speak regarding an agenda item, 
please fill out a speaker's slip and give it to the minutes clerk who will forward it to the chairman. 

Electronic Media:  Electronic media that members of the public want to be used during any public comment period should be 
submitted to the Planning Division at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. The electronic media will be subject to a virus scan and must 
be compatible with the City’s existing system.  The media must be labeled with the applicable agenda item and the name and contact 
information of the person presenting the media. 

The time used to present any electronic media will be considered as part of the maximum time limit provided to speakers.  City staff 
will queue the electronic information when the applicable speaker is called upon to speak.  Materials shown to the Commission during 
the meeting are part of the public record and will be retained by the City. 

The City of Escondido is not responsible for the content of any material presented, and the presentation and content of electronic 
media shall be subject to the same protocol regarding decorum and presentation as are applicable to live presentations. 

If you wish to speak concerning an item not on the agenda, you may do so during the designated time for "Oral Communications."  All 
persons addressing the Planning Commission are asked to state their names for the public record. If you wish to submit a written 
comment online please do so at https://escondido-ca.municodemeetings.com/bc-citycouncil/webform/public-comment 

Availability of supplemental materials after agenda posting:  Any supplemental writings or documents provided to the Planning 
Commission regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public inspection in the Planning Division located at 201 N. 
Broadway during normal business hours, or in the Council Chambers while the meeting is in session. 

The City of Escondido remains committed to complying with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). Qualified individuals with 
disabilities who wish to participate in City programs, services, or activities and who would need accommodations are invited to present 
their requests to the City by filling out a Request for Accommodations Form or an Inclusion Support Request Form for Minors, or by 
calling 760-839-4643, preferably at least 72 hours in advance of the event or activity. Forms can be found on the City’s website at: 
https://www.escondido.org/americans-with-disabilities-act  

___________________________________________________________________________________ 
The Planning Division is the coordinating division for the Planning Commission. 

For information, call 760-839-4671.

https://escondido-ca.municodemeetings.com/bc-citycouncil/webform/public-comment
https://www.escondido.org/americans-with-disabilities-act


Planning Commission Agenda 
July 26, 2022 
Page 2 

E. WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS:

Under state law, all items under Written Communications can have no action, and will be referred to
the staff for administrative action or scheduled on a subsequent agenda.

F. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS:

Under state law, all items under Oral Communications can have no action, and may be referred to the
staff for administrative action or scheduled on a subsequent agenda.

This is the opportunity for members of the public to address the Commission on any item of business
within the jurisdiction of the Commission.

G. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
Please try to limit your testimony to three minutes.

None.

H. CURRENT BUSINESS:

Note:  Current Business items are those that under state law and local ordinances do not require either
public notice or public hearings. Public comments will be limited to a maximum time of three minutes
per person.

1. 2022 General Plan Amendment - General Plan Community Protection Chapter Updates,
Environmental Justice Element:

REQUEST: Receive information on upcoming community outreach and engagement meetings 
for the 2022 General Plan Amendment work effort to update the City’s Community Protection chapter 
(safety element) and create a new Environmental Justice Element.

PROPERTY SIZE AND LOCATION: N/A

ENVIRONMENTAL STATUS: Not a project under CEQA, pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 

15378(b)(5).

APPLICANT: City of Escondido

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: None

COMMISSION ACTION:

PROJECTED COUNCIL HEARING DATE: N/A

2. PL22-0357 / Planning Commission By-Laws:

REQUEST: Amendment of Planning Commission By-Laws. 

PROPERTY SIZE AND LOCATION: N/A 



Planning Commission Agenda 
July 26, 2022 

Page 3 

  

 ENVIRONMENTAL STATUS: Not a project under CEQA, pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 
15378(b)(5).  

 
 APPLICANT: Development Services Department 
 
 STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Review existing Planning Commission By-Laws and discuss 

potential revisions to be incorporated into forthcoming draft amended document. 
 
 COMMISSION ACTION:  
 
 PROJECTED COUNCIL HEARING DATE: N/A 
 
 
I. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS: 
 

Under state law, all items under Oral Communications can have no action and may be referred to staff 
for administrative action or scheduled on a subsequent agenda. 

 
 This is the opportunity for members of the public to address the Commission on any item of business 

within the jurisdiction of the Commission. 
 
 
J. PLANNING COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
K. DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 
 
L. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 



Agenda Item No.: D 

Page 1 of 4 

CITY OF ESCONDIDO 

ACTION MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

ESCONDIDO PLANNING COMMISSION 

July 12, 2022 

The meeting of the Escondido Planning Commission was called to order at 7 p.m. 

by Chair Barba, in the City Council Chambers, 201 North Broadway, Escondido, 

California.  

Commissioners present: Katharine Barba, Chair; Rick Paul, Vice-Chair; David 

Barber, Commissioner; Carrie Mecaro, Commissioner; and Stan Weiler, 

Commissioner. 

Commissioners absent:  Dao Doan, Commissioner; Barry Speer, Commissioner. 

Staff present:  Adam Finestone, City Planner; Gary McCarthy, Assistant City 

Attorney; Owen Tunnell, Assistant City Engineer; Dare DeLano, Senior Deputy 

City Attorney; Sean Nicholas, Principal Planner; and Jessica Engel, Minutes Clerk. 

MINUTES: 

Moved by Commissioner Weiler, seconded by Commissioner Barber, to approve 

the Action Minutes of the May 10, 2022, Planning Commission meeting.  Motion 

carried (5-0). Ayes: Barba, Paul, Barber, Mecaro, and Weiler. Absent: Doan, 

Speer.  

WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS: A letter from the Escondido Chamber of Citizens 

in regard to agenda item G1 was provided to commissioners prior to the meeting.  

ORAL COMMUNICATION: None. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 



Page 2 of 4 

1. Senate Bill 9 Implementing Ordinance (PL22-0363):

REQUEST: An amendment to the Escondido Zoning Code to create objective 

development standards for the implementation of Senate Bill 9 (“SB 9”). The 

request includes amendments to Articles 1 (General provisions and Definitions), 

6 (Residential Zones), and 61 (Administration and Enforcement) of the Zoning 

Code to establish appropriate provisions.   

PROPERTY SIZE AND LOCATION: Citywide 

ENVIRONMENTAL STATUS: Pursuant to Government Code sections 65852.21(j) 

and 66411.7(n), the adoption of provisions by local agencies to implement SB 9 is 

exempt from CEQA.   

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Recommend approval to the City Council. 

PROJECTED COUNCIL DATE: August 24, 2022 

COMMISSION DISCUSSION: 

Commissioners discussed the proposed amendment including setbacks, parking, 

utility meter requirements, level of interest from the public, litigation by other cities, 

and minor changes to code language.   

WRITTEN COMMUNICATION: 

A comment from Patricia Borchmann regarding item G1 was read into the record. 

COMMISSION ACTION: 

Moved by Vice-Chair Paul, seconded by Commissioner Barber, to approve Senate 

Bill 9 Implementing Ordinance (PL22-0363) with modifications.  Motion carried (5-

0). Ayes: Barba, Barber, Mecaro, Paul, and Weiler. Absent: Doan, Speer. 

CURRENT BUSINESS: 

1. 2022 / 2023 Planning Commission Work Plan (PL22-0358):



 

Page 3 of 4 

 

 

REQUEST: Consideration of the 2022 / 2023 Planning Commission Work Plan.  

 

PROPERTY SIZE AND LOCATION: N/A  

 

 ENVIRONMENTAL STATUS: The 2022 / 2023 Planning Commission Work Plan 

is not considered a project under CEQA, pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 

15378(b)(5).  

 

 APPLICANT: City of Escondido  

 

 STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve the 2022 / 2023 Planning Commission 

Work Plan.  

 

 PROJECTED COUNCIL HEARING DATE: N/A 

 

 COMMISSION DISCUSSION: 

 

Commissioners discussed the work plan, including the addition of a Gantt chart 

and the structuring of a Climate Commission.  

 

COMMISSION ACTION: 

 

Moved by Commissioner Barber, seconded by Commissioner Weiler, to approve 

2022 / 2023 Planning Commission Work Plan.  Motion carried (5-0). Ayes: Barba, 

Barber, Mecaro, Paul, and Weiler. Absent: Doan, Speer. 

 

PLANNING COMMISSIONERS: 

 

Commissioner Weiler requested to have a discussion added to a future agenda to 

discuss changing the meeting time of the Planning Commission.  

 

Commissioner Barber asked if it is possible to prohibit residents from putting up 

obscene banners.  

 

Chair Barba suggested that each Commissioner be allowed a 30 minute call 

regarding agenda items.  

 

DIRECTOR’S REPORT: 

 



Page 4 of 4 

City Planner Adam Finestone updated the Commission regarding the new Director 

of Development Services, Andrew Firestine, and will supply an updated org chart. 

The next Planning Commission meeting is scheduled to take place on July 26, 2022. 

ADJOURNMENT: 

Chair Barba adjourned the meeting at 8:45 p.m. 

______________________________ ___________________________ 

Adam Finestone, Secretary to the  Jessica Engel, Minutes Clerk 

Escondido Planning Commission 



Agenda Item No.: H.1 
Date: July 26, 2022

DATE: July 26, 2022 

TO: Planning Commissioners 

FROM:  Veronica Morones, Senior Planner 

SUBJECT: 2022 General Plan Amendment - General Plan Community Protection Chapter 
Updates, Environmental Justice Element  

The City of Escondido is updating the General Plan’s Community Protection chapter and creating 
a new environmental justice chapter under the 2022 General Plan Amendment (2022 GPA) work 
effort, which kicked off at the end of 2021. The Escondido General Plan’s Community Protection 
chapter serves as the Safety Element for purposes of meeting statutory requirements contained 
in Government Code section 65302. The City’s new environmental justice chapter would overhaul 
the existing Community Health and Services chapter of the City’s General Plan, which is an 
optional element (i.e., it is not a required element pursuant to Government Code section 65302). 
The chapter would be re-dedicated to environmental justice policies, goals, and objectives, while 
retaining existing applicable provisions. The creation of an environmental justice element is 
required pursuant to Government Code section 65302(h) and will include the identification of 
disadvantaged communities (Government Code § 65302(h)(1)) within the City of Escondido, as 
well as topics including reduction in pollution exposure, the promotion of public facilities, food 
access, safe and sanitary homes, physical activity, and civic engagement in the public decision-
making process.  

Community outreach and engagement is an integral part of the 2022 GPA work effort. Community 
outreach and engagement for the 2022 GPA is outlined, in both English and Spanish, in the 2022 
GPA outreach and engagement plan located on the 2022 GPA webpage: 
https://www.escondido.org/2022-general-plan-amendment. The 2022 GPA outreach and 
engagement plan is provided under Attachment 1, and details a number of activities for ensuring 
public participation, including, but not limited to stakeholder roundtable discussions, at-large 
community workshops, and open houses. City staff held two stakeholder roundtable discussions 
in April and are holding at-large community workshops and open houses in August and October, 
respectively. The schedule of these upcoming community outreach and engagement 
opportunities are listed below: 

 At-Large Community Workshops
o Sunday, 8/7, from 1-2:30 PM in the Citrus Room at the East Valley Community Center
o Thursday, 8/11, from 6:30-8 PM in the Turrentine Room at the Escondido Public

Library

 Open House Events
o Sunday, 10/9, from 10 AM-1 PM at the Adobe Circle in Kit Carson Park (outdoor event)
o Saturday, 10/15, from 9 AM – 12 PM in the Washington Park Recreation Building

https://www.escondido.org/2022-general-plan-amendment


In addition to the 2022 GPA specific outreach and engagement activities, City staff has attended 
partner events throughout the community, with additional upcoming events scheduled. A 
preliminary calendar of past and future pop-up/shared events is provided below. This list will 
continue to be updated as staff continues to coordinate additional pop-up/shared events. The 
upcoming at-large community workshops and open houses, as well as the pop-up/shared events, 
are in addition to the standard participation required by State law, such as consultation with tribal 
governments pursuant to Senate Bill 18, and forthcoming environmental review. 

2022 GPA Outreach and Engagement Schedule 

Date Activity/Event Location 

4/15/2022 Organized Stakeholder Roundtable Meeting Virtual 

4/20/2022 Organized Stakeholder Roundtable Meeting Virtual 

5/16/2022 
San Pasqual High School (SPHS) Geography & 

Government Classes 
SPHS 

6/18/2022 
Neighborhood Health Care and Feeding San Diego 

Food Distribution Event 
425 N. Date 

6/23/2022 

North County Food Bank and Mission Middle 
School 

Food Distribution Event 

Farr Elementary School 

7/15/2022 CAFÉ Meeting Virtual 

7/16/2022 Community Health Fair 425 N Date 

7/16/2022 Succulent Swap Escondido Public Library 

7/31/2022 Escondido PRIDE Kit Carson Park 

8/2/2022 National Night Out East Valley Community Center 

8/7/2022 At-Large Community Workshop 
Citrus Room – East Valley 

Community Center 

8/11/2022 At-Large Community Workshop 
Turrentine Room – Escondido 

Public Library 

8/12/2022 
Cruising Grand Tabling Event with Escondido 

Together 
Grand Avenue 

10/9/2022 Open House Adobe Circle – Kit Carson Park 

10/15/2022 Open House 
Washington Park Recreation 

Building 

Attachments: 
1. Community Outreach and Engagement Plan



DRAFT COMMUNITY OUTREACH 
AND ENGAGEMENT PLAN

For the 2022 General Plan Amendment:
• Community Protection Chapter (aka Safety Element)
• Environmental Justice Element

Draft, February 2022
Downtown Escondido

Source: City of Escondido, 2021

ATTACHMENT 1



CONTENTS
PLAN ORGANIZATION ............................................................................................3
1. Introduction to this Plan ....................................................................................4

1.1. What is the 2022 General Plan Amendment (2022 GPA)? .................................................4
1.2. Why is the City conducting outreach and engagement? ...................................................8
1.3. How does this document work? ...........................................................................................10
1.4. Why one outreach and engagement plan for both documents? ...................................11
1.5. What do you mean by “outreach” and “engagement?” ....................................................12
1.6. Outreach and Engagement Contact ...................................................................................12

2. Goals ...................................................................................................................1
2.1. What are the Goals of this Plan? ..........................................................................................16

3. Community Snapshot & Equity Assessment ...................................................18
3.1. San Diego County Demographics ........................................................................................18
3.2. Escondido Demographics .....................................................................................................19
3.3. Existing assessment of outreach .........................................................................................20
3.4. Equity Assessment and Community Focus  ........................................................................22

4. Actions and Strategies for Outreach and Engagement ..................................23
4.1. Standard Public Participation Requirements .....................................................................23
4.2.	 Notification	of	the	2022	General	Plan	Update	process	 ...................................................25
4.3.	 Involvement	and	Collaboration	on	the	2022	General	Plan	Update	Process ................26
4.4. Collaboration and Deferment to Safety and Environmental Justice Communities  .....27

5. Outcome of Community Outreach and Engagement  ....................................28
6. Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) ................................................................31
7. References and Resources ...............................................................................32

Dixon Lake
Source: City of Escondido, 2021



Draft | PLAN ORGANIZATION  | 3 

Chapter 5.0: 
Outcome of Community 
Outreach and Engagement
This chapter catalogs all outreach and 
engagement conducted throughout 
the 2022 GPA process. This chapter 
will be updated quarterly to show 
upcoming and past events, until the 
2022 GPA is complete.

Chapter 6.0: 
Frequently Asked Questions 
(FAQs)
This chapter provides a list of 
Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) 
encountered during the outreach and 
engagement process. 

Chapter 7.0: 
References and Resources
This chapter details reference 
documentation that was used to 
create this plan and provides resources 
for those who may be interested in 
learning more about meaningful 
outreach and engagement strategies. 

Chapter 1.0: 
Introduction to this Plan
This chapter explains what the 2022 
General Plan Amendment (2022 GPA) 
is and why the City is conducting 
outreach and engagement for the 
2022	 GPA.	 This	 chapter	 also	 defines	
“outreach” and “engagement.”

Chapter 2.0: 
Goals 
This chapter lists the goals of the 
community outreach and engagement 
to be undertaken as a part of this plan. 
This chapter outlines goals established 
by the City as the agency carrying out 
the outreach and engagement; the 
consulting community at-large and 
stakeholders who are working to aid 
in	 this	 effort;	 and	 specific	 community	
residents who may be directly impacted 
by the 2022 GPA.

Chapter 3.0: 
Community Snapshot and 
Equity Assessment
This chapter provides a brief snapshot 
of the City’s demographics and 
assesses equity based on those 
demographics. It includes a summary 
of	past	outreach	efforts	undertaken	by	
the	 City,	 and	 identifies	 strategies	 for	
meaningful engagement. 

Chapter 4.0: 
Actions and Strategies for 
Outreach and Engagement
This	chapter	outlines	actions	staff	will	
take to conduct outreach and engage 
with the community to inform, consult, 
and empower stakeholders to shape 
the 2022 GPA. Project milestones are 
provided to show a general timeframe 
of when an action/strategy will occur. 

PLAN ORGANIZATION
This Community Outreach and Engagement Plan is organized into the following chapters.



Draft | Chapter 1 | 4 

Key Terms

General Plan: A general plan is 
the City’s blueprint for meeting the 
community’s long-term vision for 
the future. A general plan is made 
up of text describing goals and 
objectives, principles, standards, 
and plan proposals, as well as a set 
of maps and diagrams.

Element: The term “element” 
refers to the topics that California 
law requires to be covered in a 
general plan (GC§ 65302).

Amended: Making a change to 
the general plan. Amendments to 
the general plan must comply with 
City of Escondido Zoning Code 
Article 61, Division 4 – Amendments 
and Zone Changes (see “General 
Plan Amendment”).  

Sphere of Influence: 
A planning boundary outside of an 
agency’s legal boundary (such as 
the city limit line) that designates the 
agency’s probable future boundary 
and service area.

Background
A general plan is a city’s blueprint for meeting 
its community’s long-term vision for the future. 
A general plan document is made up of text 
describing goals and objectives, principles, 
standards, and plan proposals, as well as a set 
of maps and diagrams. A general plan must 
talk about certain topics as mandated by State 
law. Each topic is referred to as an “element” 
within the general plan. In order to change text, 
maps, and/or diagrams within a city’s general 
plan, the general plan must be amended. 
The City is currently working on amending the 
general plan through updates to the housing 
element, safety element, and creation of a new 
environmental justice element. 

A city’s housing element assesses current and 
projected housing needs for all economic 
segments of the community. In addition, 
the housing element embodies policies for 
providing adequate housing and includes 
action programs for that purpose. By statute, 
the housing element must be updated every 
eight years.

A city’s safety element establishes policies and 
programs to protect the community from 
risks	associated	with	seismic,	geologic,	flood,	
and	 wildfire	 hazards,	 as	 well	 as	 from	 other	
concerns such as drought.

A city’s environmental justice	element	identifies	
disadvantaged communities within the 
City and its sphere of influence. The 
environmental justice element outlines 
policies, objectives, and goals to reduce 
the unique or compounded health risks in 
disadvantaged communities by means that 
include the reduction of pollution exposure 
(such as air quality, water quality, soils) and the 
promotion of public facilities, food access, safe 
and sanitary homes, physical activity, and civic 
engagement in the decision-making process. 

The City is currently working to finalize the 
6th cycle update to the housing element, 
which began in 2020. The tail end of the 
City’s housing element update overlaps with 
the 2022 GPA. For more information on the 
6th cycle housing element, visit: 
https://www.escondido.org/hcis

1. Introduction to this Plan
1.1. What is the 2022 General Plan Amendment 
(2022 GPA)?

https://www.escondido.org/hcis


Draft | Chapter 1 | 5 

Community Protection Chapter
The City of Escondido is conducting an update to the Safety Element, also 
known as the Community Protection chapter, of the City’s General Plan. 
The update is required pursuant to Government Code Section (“GC §”) 
65302(g). In this update, new topic areas must be addressed, including, 
but	not	limited	to,	fire	hazards,	climate	adaptation	and	resiliency,	and	
evacuation routes. In addition to new topic areas required by the State, 
the City will update the Community Protection chapter to account for 
general clean up items such as nominal changes to City department 
names, and updated references. 

The current Community Protection includes the following topics:

• Relationship to Other Elements in the General Plan
• Emergency Preparedness, Disaster Response, and Recovery
• Fire Protection
• Police Services
• Code Enforcement
• Community Safety
• Noise
• Community Protection Goals and Policies



Draft | Chapter 1 | 6 

the adoption or next revision of two or more 
elements concurrently on or after January 1, 
2018 (GC § 65302(h)(2)). In this case, updates 
to the City’s Housing and Safety Elements are 
currently required and will occur concurrently–
triggering the need to create the EJ element.

The update to the Community Protection 
Chapter and reconfiguring of the Community 
Health and Services Chapter into a new EJ 
element are the proposed changes that make 
up the “2022 General Plan Amendment.” 
For more information on this general 
process, visit the 2022 GPA webpage:  
https://www.escondido.org/2022-
general-plan-amendment

Environmental Justice (EJ) 
Element
In addition to the Community Protection 
chapter update, the City is undertaking the 
creation of an environmental justice element. 
The EJ element will overhaul the existing 
Community Health and Services chapter 
which is an optional element (i.e., it is not a 
required element pursuant to GC§ 65302).

The City’s Community Health and Services 
chapter of the General Plan will serve as 
a basis for the EJ element because the 
Community Health and Services chapter 
currently addresses certain topics required 
of an EJ element, such as food access and 
promotion of physical activity. 

This updated chapter will include new 
environmental justice goals, policies, and 
objectives, and identify environmental justice 
communities within the City and include 
actions to reduce environmental injustices 
in these communities. Including all policies, 
goals, and objectives related to environmental 
justice within one chapter of the City’s General 
Plan will ensure consistency and simplify 
implementation. Existing topics within the 
Community Health and Services chapter that 
are not explicitly required by GC§ 65302(h) will 
remain within this revised element. 

The State refers to environmental justice 
communities as “disadvantaged communities” 
and	defines	them	as:

“...an area identified by the California 
Environmental Protection Agency Pursuant to 
Section 39711 of the Health and Safety Code 
or an area that is a low-income area that is 
disproportionately affected by environmental 
pollution and other hazards that can lead 
to negative health effects, exposure, or 
environmental degradation” 
(GC§ 65302(h)(4)(A)). 

Identification of “disadvantaged communities” 
(aka environmental justice (“EJ”) communities) is 
a part of creating the new EJ element. The reason 
for the identification of EJ communities is to focus 
the EJ element’s policies, goals, and objectives on 
parts of the City that have experienced a high 
and disproportionate rate of pollution burden. 
Specifically, the City will collaborate with and work to 
empower impacted residents in the EJ communities 
to establish policy that works to remove and/or 
remedy the environmental injustices a specific EJ 
community may be facing.

Similar to how state legislation requires a 
safety element to be updated as a result 
of a housing element update, the City is 
responsible for adopting an EJ element upon 

https://www.escondido.org/2022-general-plan-amendment
https://www.escondido.org/2022-general-plan-amendment


The State of California defines environmental justice* as:

“The fair treatment and meaningful involvement 
of people of all races, cultures, incomes, and 
national origins with respect to the development, 
adoption, implementation, and enforcement of 
environmental laws, regulations, and policies” 
(GC§ 65040.12(e)).

The State of California refers to environmental justice communities as 
“disadvantaged communities” and defines them as: 

“...an area identified by the California Environmental 
Protection Agency Pursuant to Section 39711 of the 
Health and Safety Code or an area that is a low-income 
area that is disproportionately affected by environmental 
pollution and other hazards that can lead to negative 
health effects, exposure, or environmental degradation” 
(GC§ 65302(h)(4)(A))

*Additional definitions are provided under Chapter 7 - References and Resources.

A hazard is a danger or risk. 

The Community Protection Chapter (aka Safety 
Element)	identifies	natural	and	man-made	hazards.	

Examples	of	a	natural	hazard	include	fires,	
flooding,	seismic	and	geologic	activities	(like	
earthquakes or liquefaction), and extreme heat. 
These	types	of	natural	hazards	can	be	made	worse	
by climate change. 

Examples	of	a	man-made	hazard	include	hazardous	
materials such as pesticide use, as well as storage 
and	transportation	of	hazardous	materials	through	
the City or at industrial uses. 

Adaptation is the process of adjustment to actual or 
expected	effects	of	an	impact,	in	the	case	of	a	Safety	
Element,	the	effects	of	climate	change.	

Resiliency is the ability of a system to recover quickly from 
an impact. In the case of a Safety Element, how resilient a 
community and its systems are to anticipate, recover, or 
accommodate	effects	of	climate	change.

For example, increased occurrences and severity of 
wildfires	is	an	impact	of	climate	change.	How	a	community	
adapts	to	and	how	resilient	a	community	is	to	those	effects	
can depend on local, state, and federal policy. 



 Draft | Chapter 1 | 8 

Key Terms

2022 General Plan 
Amendment (2022 GPA): 
The	 concurrent	 work	 effort	 by	 the	
Planning Division to update the 
Community Protection Chapter and 
reconfiguring	 of	 the	 Community	
Health and Services Chapter into a 
new Environmental Justice Element.

Marginalized: Treated as 
insignificant.

Moderate, high, and very high 
fire hazard severity zones:  
California law requires CAL FIRE to 
identify areas based on the severity 
of	 fire	 hazard	 that	 is	 expected	 to	
prevail	there.	These	areas,	or	“zones,”	
are based on factors such as fuel, 
slope	 and	 fire	 weather.	 There	 are	
three	zones,	based	on	increasing	fire	
hazard:	medium,	high	and	very	high	
(CAL FIRE, 2022).

1.2. Why is the City 
conducting outreach and 
engagement?
The purpose of the community outreach 
and engagement plan is to provide an 
understandable, transparent, and cohesive 
strategy for informing, consulting, and 
empowering the community of Escondido on the 
2022 GPA. The State requires a city to provide 
opportunities for community involvement when 
amending and updating a general plan (GC§ 
65351). Community involvement entails not only 
Escondido residents, but also businesses within 
the City, other public agencies (such as water 
districts, public utilities, etc.), and community 
groups	and	organizations.	

It is important to highlight that community 
members are holders of local knowledge. 
It is the responsibility of the City to listen, 
elevate, and make space for community 
voices in the planning process. Such space 
can	 lead	 to	 better	 and	 more	 effective	
planning	 decisions.	 Effective	 community	
outreach and engagement represents 
all stakeholders—those who are directly 
impacted by environmental justice and safety 
issues, as well as the public at-large; those 
with adequate resources for engaging, such 
as time and energy, as well as those who 
historically are marginalized by traditional 
methods of outreach. 

Community Protection
The Community Protection chapter of 
the General Plan addresses issues such 
as	 flood	 and	 fire	 hazards,	 geological	 and	
seismic	 activity,	 and	 hazardous	 materials.	
The State mandated update to the City’s 
Community Protection chapter will include 
new	information	regarding	wildfire	hazards,	
climate resiliency and adaptation, and 
evacuation routes. Within the boundaries 
of	 the	 City	 and	 sphere	 of	 influence	 are	
moderate, high, and very high fire 
hazard severity zones (HFHSZ and 
VHFHSZ).	 Within	 these	 fire	 hazard	 severity	
zones	 are	 residential	 and	 nonresidential	
development where people live, work, and 
exist. Since the 2022 GPA will entail updates 
to the Community Protection chapter 
regarding	 fire	 hazards,	 climate	 resiliency	
and adaptation, and evacuation routes, 
community involvement is important to 
ensure these stakeholders are informed 
and have space to provide input to the City 
regarding any policy changes.   



Draft | Chapter 1 | 9 

Environmental Justice
Environmental Justice (EJ) takes place within a complex framework 
of interrelated issues. One of the most important pieces of 
environmental justice is the acknowledgment and effort to 
remedy the disproportionately high and negative impacts 
on the health and environmental wellbeing of low income 
communities and communities of color that occurred over 
the development of modern society. To start this process, 
identification	 and	 outreach	 to	 these	 communities	 must	 occur	 with	
integrity	 and	 concerted	 effort	 by	 those	who	have	historically	 upheld	
processes, programs, and policies that play a role in perpetuating such 
marginalization.	 Historically,	 those	 in	 power,	 such	 as	 governments	
and corporations, upheld such inequitable structures. Therefore, it is 
incredibly important for those tasked with creating environmental justice 
policies,	objectives,	and	goals	 to	acknowledge	 the	marginalization	of	
groups perpetuated by the current systems in place, assert a clear vision 
for rebuilding community strength and ownership, and work toward 
engagement that is meaningful and equitable for our environmental 
justice communities. 

Transit Center. Source: City of Escondido, 2021



Draft | Chapter 1 | 10 

1.3. How does this document work?
This document is intended to act as a living document. Instead of a 
static	plan,	 the	City	will	update	 the	plan	quarterly	 to	reflect	outreach	
and	engagement	efforts	that	occurred	during	the	quarterly	time	period	
(i.e., every 3 months). This provides a single location for community 
members to access information about the outreach and engagement 
process, including the plan’s progress during implementation. It 
is important to note that methods and strategies for outreach and 
engagement will not change, unless it is to add additional methods 
of outreach and engagement. In other word, this plan will not change 
to lessen or decrease outreach and engagement for the 2022 GPA 
process. Instead, changes will entail capturing feedback  from the 
stakeholders	and	community	members,	tracking	efforts,	and	providing	
a	summary	on	what	efforts	transpired,	such	as	meeting	dates,	number	
of people in attendance, etc.

Throughout this plan are 
(forthcoming) text, which show where 
future text updates will occur.

This	living	document	will	help	City	staff	and	stakeholders	understand	
what	 methods	 of	 outreach	 and	 engagement	 are	 most	 effective	 in	
our communities, and where improvements can be made for future 
efforts.	Outreach,	 engagement,	 and	 the	overall	 public	 participation	
process is always a work in progress that must be continuously 
improved upon in order to empower our community in the decision-
making process.



Draft | Chapter 1 | 11 

1.4. Why one outreach and engagement plan for 
both documents?
Environmental justice as a concept is far 
reaching, and as a theme, can translate to all 
elements of a general plan. For example, the 
Community	Protection	chapter	discusses	fire	
hazards	 within	 the	 City,	 including	 wildfires.	
When	fires	occur,	such	as	a	wildfire,	particulate	
matter from smoke and ash can impact 
certain communities more than others, such 
as outdoor workers, unsheltered individuals 
experiencing homelessness, and individuals 
with underlying health conditions. In this 
example, these disproportionate impacts from 
fire	are	an	environmental	justice	issue.	Another	
example of how the Community Protection 
chapter and environmental justice overlap 

pertains to disaster response. Individuals 
and communities who speak languages other 
than those emergency messages are relayed 
in (i.e., English and Spanish) may struggle with 
timely response in the event of an emergency, 
such	as	wildfire	evacuations.	

Since any update of two general plan elements 
triggers the creation of an environmental justice 
element, it is appropriate for the concurrent 
outreach	 effort	 between	 the	 Community	
Protection chapter and EJ element. The City’s 
6th	 Cycle	Housing	 Element	Update	 is	 nearing	
completion, so this plan is only for the safety and 
EJ elements.



Draft | Chapter 1 | 12 

1.5. What do you mean by “outreach” 
and “engagement?”
Community engagement transcends outreach, and works to facilitate 
community agency and power in shaping policy within the City. It is 
often suggested, but not mandated, and ranges on a spectrum from 
marginalization	 of	 the	 community	 members/groups/individuals,	 to	
collaboration and deferment of decision to the community. To help 
visualize	 this	 spectrum,	 Figure	 1	 on	 the	 following	 page	 illustrates	
a	 spectrum	 of	 public	 participation	 developed	 by	 Rosa	 Gonzalez	 of	
Facilitating Power. 

City Definition
For	the	purposes	of	the	2022	GPA,	the	City’s	definitions	of	“outreach”	
and “engagement” are provided below. 

• Outreach is the process of communicating, informing, 
consulting, and involving stakeholders of an action the City 
intends to carry out, such as the 2022 GPA.

• Engagement is the long-term effort to collaborate with and 
whenever possible, defer to the community. 

Stakeholder and Community Definition
Stakeholders and community members will establish their own 
definitions	 of	 “outreach”	 and	 “engagement”	 as	 part	 of	 the	 public	
participation	process.	These	definitions	will	provide	insight	to	City	staff	
on how best to engage and reach our community. 

• Outreach 
 - Stakeholder Definitions of “Outreach” – See Page 13
 - Community (forthcoming)

• Engagement 
 - Stakeholder Definitions of “Engagement” – See Page 14
 - Community (forthcoming)

1.6. Outreach and Engagement Contact
The 2022 GPA project planner is Veronica Morones. Anyone 
seeking information on the 2022 GPA should contact:

Veronica Morones, Senior Planner
760-839-4548
Vmorones@escondido.org 

Transit Center. Source: City of Escondido, 2021



Draft | Chapter 1 | 13 

Stakeholder Definitions of “Outreach”
How do you define “outreach?”

Reaching out to community members, key 
stakeholders, etc. to “bring them in” to 
whatever it is you’re doing or planning

Reaching the whole community with pertinent 
information and being as inclusive as possible

Person to person conversations to learn from 
residents/members and provide resources 
and information when appropriate

Connecting with a community on shared goals 
in a collaborative manner

Connection to share & receive information

Providing resources and meeting people’s 
needs before asking for something in return

Engagement is communication back and forth 
not just putting information out but listening 
with an open mind

Meeting the community where they are at

Meeting the community where they are at

To reach out to the community and empower 
them to make decisions relation to their 
wellbeing

Providing residents information on important 
topics

Listening	to	different	aspects	and	viewpoints	
of the community

Outreach	is	making	the	effort	to	contact	
people who would not be involved without 
that contact being made

Listening and learning - not just “educating”

Going beyond your usual scope to connect, 
educate, inform, provide service to others

Creating an interest and hearing from 
someone (from your community) who could 
accessibly disseminate info

Engaging others to gather input and ideas

Engaging others to gather input and ideas

Culturally sensitive education, using language 
that speaks to them

Giving everyone who might have a stake 
in something a chance to weight in on 
something

Creating communication channels and being 
sensitive to access

Email, social media, (Facebook). Since 
Escondido has high Latino population, Spanish 
radio is recommended

Trying to reach as many populations as you 
can

Making people aware of opportunities in 
culturally relevant constructs

Providing direct service/access to information, 
how can residents respond to topics & become 
involved

Going to where people are

Going to where people are

Providing opportunities to community 
members	to	effectively	advocate	for	their	
own interests where decisions are being 
considered and made listening issue



Draft | Chapter 1 | 14 

Stakeholder Definitions of “Engagement”
How do you define “engagement?”

Meaningful involvement by both parties

Outreach is successful and people respond to 
the issue

Getting everyone to share their perspectives, 
consider other’s perspectives, and get involved 
in general

Hearing from someone in your community to 
accessibly disseminate the information on why 
it matters

Connecting with others

Actively listen and responding to need

Shared interaction with community members 
(conversations, likes, shares, emails, etc.), 
connecting folks to resources or other 
organizations,	consistent	communication,	
checking in on a personal level

Understanding	and	not	just	listening

In person meetings are ideal, but Zoom or 
other virtual meeting venues are also good. 
Active listening, encourage new speakers

To elicit a respond be that action or word

Active involvement

Partnership building

“Active Listening” to the community, and 
prompt, thorough response

Engagement is a conversation rather than just 
delivery of information

Thorough reach through trusted messenger

Two way conversation

Active listening

Establishing a two-way street



T h e  S p e c t r u m  o f  C o m m u n i t y  E n g a g e m e n t  t o  O w n e r s h i p 2

IGNORE  INFORM CONSULT INVOLVE COLLABORATE DEFER TO

IMPACT Marginalization Preparation or 
Placation

Limited Voice or 
Tokenization 

Voice Delegated  
Power

Community  
Ownership

COMMUNITY  

ENGAGEMENT 

GOALS

Deny access to 
decision-making 
processes

Provide the 
community with 
relevant information

Gather input from 
the community

Ensure community 
needs and assets 
are integrated into 
process & inform 
planning

Ensure community 
capacity to play a 
leadership role in 
decision-making and 
the implementation 
of decisions.

Foster democratic 
participation and equity 
through community-
driven decision-
making; Bridge divide 
between community & 
governance

MESSAGE TO  

COMMUNITY

Your voice, needs 
& interests do not 
matter 

We will keep you 
informed

We care what you 
think

You are making 
us think, (and 
therefore act) 
differently about  
the issue

Your leadership 
and expertise are 
critical to how we 
address the issue

It’s time to unlock 
collective power 
and capacity for 
transformative 
solutions

ACTIVITIES Closed door 
meeting

Misinformation

Systematic 
Disenfranchisement

Voter suppression

Fact sheets

Open Houses

Presentations

Billboards

Videos

Public Comment 

Focus Groups 

Community Forums

Surveys

Community 
organizing & 
advocacy

Interactive 
workshops 

Polling

Community forums

Open Planning 
Forums with Citizen 
Polling

MOU’s with 
Community-based 
organizations

Citizen advisory 
committees

Collaborative Data 
Analysis

Co-Design and  
Co-Implementation 
of Solutions

Collaborative 
Decision-Making

Community-driven 
planning and 
governance

Consensus building

Participatory action 
research

Participatory budgeting

Cooperative models

RESOURCE 

ALLOCATION  

RATIOS

100%  
Systems Admin

70-90%  
Systems Admin

10-30%  
Promotions and 
Publicity

60-80% 
Systems Admin

20-40% 
Consultation 
Activities

50-60% 
Systems Admin

40-50%  
Community 
Involvement

20-50% 
Systems Admin

50-70% 
Community 
Partners

80-100% 
Community partners 
and community-driven 
processes ideally 
generate new value and 
resources that can be 
invested in solutions

0 1 2 3 4 5

STANCE  
TOWARDS  

COMMUNITY

The Spectrum of Community Engagement to Ownership

              Incre ased ef f ic iency in  decis ion-m a k ing a nd s olu t ions imp l emen tat ion                   EQUI T Y

Figure 1 – THE SPECTRUM OF COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT TO OWNERSHIP



Draft | Chapter 2 | 16 

E. Ensure communities historically marginalized in the 
public outreach and engagement process are provided 
space to contribute at their discretion.

F. Eliminate barriers surrounding public engagement, 
including, but not limited to: language, time of day, 
and location/mobility. Prioritize the following:

 – Translation services for outreach and engagement 
activities and materials, at minimum in English 
and Spanish, with an effort to increase capacity for 
other languages, such as Tagalog, Mandarin, and 
Vietnamese.

 – Hold outreach and engagement activities during 
various times of day, days of the week, and 
locations throughout the City to ensure adequate 
opportunities for community members to attend.

 – Provide healthy refreshments at any in-person 
events.

 – Use both in-person and virtual meetings equally.
 – Conduct a majority of outreach outside of City Hall 
and within the community at-large.

Community at-large and Stakeholders
GOALS:
Stakeholder Goals – See Page 17
Community Goals: (forthcoming)

Safety and EJ communities
GOALS:
(forthcoming)

2.1. What are the Goals of this Plan?
The goals of this plan are detailed below and separated into three 
categories.	City	staff	drafted	the	first	set	of	goals	 to	provide	a	base	
framework for stakeholders to work from. External stakeholders, such 
as	community	organizations,	other	public	agencies,	and	the	general	
public. will establish the second set of goals. Communities most likely 
impacted by the update to the Community Protection chapter and 
new environmental justice element, such as EJ communities and 
those	in	hazard	zones,	will	define	the	final	set	of	goals.

City
GOALS:

A. Maintain this community outreach and engagement 
plan as a living document, to be updated throughout 
the outreach and engagement process.

B. Involve and collaborate with the Escondido community 
and stakeholders to ensure meaningful outreach and 
engagement occur as a part of the 2022 GPA process. 

C. Provide resources and opportunities to the Escondido 
community to explore community ownership and 
community lead efforts in the 2022 GPA process, and in 
future policy making within the City.

D. Empower the Escondido community, especially those 
who live and work in our EJ communities and in hazard 
zones, to provide local knowledge and expertise in the 
2022 GPA process. 

2. Goals



Draft | Chapter 2 | 17 

Stakeholder Goals
What are goals you would like to see in the 2022 GPA outreach and 
engagement effort?

Scheduling roundtables during community 
events, health fairs, school meetings, etc.

Open forum discussion with the community at 
large

A clear and transparent plan/timeline available 
to the public

Having incentives/food for participants

Compensating people for their time

Using	simple,	clear	language	and	avoiding	
jargon

Youth involvement

Regular rotation and appearance of City 
Council	and	staff	listening	sessions	to	occur	at	
established locations throughout the city so 
people get used to attending and interacting 
with	their	friends,	Council,	and	Staff	reps

Is a youth paid internship program possible?

Open forum, encourage student participation, 
overlap with middle schools and high 
schools. Make sure invitations make everyone 
welcome, and encourage comment from 
individuals who don’t usually participate....We 
want to hear from everyone possible

All materials in Spanish

Partner with so-called trusted messengers 
who can be intermediaries between you and 
those you’re trying to reach

Getting the perspective of people from as 
many	different	backgrounds	and	groups	as	
possible

Providing childcare and food at the community 
meetings to folks have support and resources 
to engage

Have clear expectation of what people’s 
involvement could/should/would be

Prioritizing	non-English	languages	(not	just	
translation services)

Focusing on in-person services, since 
technology accessibility is also an equity issue

Involving the immigrant community

Council	and	staff	sessions	regularly	held	
throughout the city with translation provided 
so that people can get used to interfacing with 
council	and	staff	reps

Participation by youth

Participation	that	involves	all	the	different	
population in the city

Helping people understand what is in it for 
them. Both the now and later

Identifying trusted community leaders (e.g. 
promotora model) to help build community 
and encourage engagement

Providing options for those that are time or 
location-constrained

Participation by youth

Lilian made a very good point when she 
mentioned the need to reach out to people in 
a way they can relate to or which makes them 
feel welcome



Sources: US Census, 2019 ACS 1-Year; SANDAG Demographic and Socioeconomic Estimates (2021)

*AAPI: Asian 
Americans and Pacific 
Islanders 

Total Population 
3,343,349

Median Household Income
$72,239

Median Age
35.4

Language Other than 
English Spoken at Home

36.7%

Without Health Care 
Coverage

8.0%

San Diego County

Hispanic
White

Native 
American 
& AAPI*
Black
All Others

Race & Ethnicity

Draft | Chapter 3 | 18 

3.1. San Diego County Demographics
San	Diego	County	is	located	in	the	southwest	corner	of	California,	sharing	an	international	border	with	Mexico	to	the	south,	and	the	Pacific	Ocean	
to	the	west.	The	information	shown	below	details	the	overall	county	demographic	data	as	a	baseline	for	comparison	against	the	jurisdiction-specific	
data	for	the	City	of	Escondido	(next	page).	Data	in	this	section	is	provided	by	the	San	Diego	Association	of	Governments	and	the	US	Census	Bureau.	

3. Community Snapshot & Equity Assessment



Total Population 
153,008 Race & Ethnicity

Median Household Income
$59,942

Median Age
34.3

Hispanic
White

Black

Native 
American 
& AAPI*
All Others

Language Other than 
English Spoken at Home

38.7%

Without Health Care 
Coverage

12.7%
Sources: US Census, 2019 ACS 1-Year; SANDAG Demographic and Socioeconomic Estimates (2021) *AAPI: Asian Americans and Pacific Islanders 

City of Escondido

Draft | Chapter 3 | 19 

3.2. Escondido Demographics
The City of Escondido is located in the north eastern portion of San Diego County, at the intersection of Interstate 15 (I-15) and State Route 78 (SR-
78).  The information shown below details Escondido’s demographic data for comparison to the whole of San Diego County. Data in this section is 
provided	by	the	San	Diego	Association	of	Governments	and	the	US	Census	Bureau.



Draft | Chapter 3 | 20 

3.3. Existing assessment of outreach
Mandated	notification	and	outreach,	such	as	those	outlined	in	federal,	
state, and local laws, as well as guidance on best practices for outreach 
provided	by	the	public,	private,	and	non-profit	sectors,	shapes	the	current	
climate of outreach and engagement in community and city planning. 

Housing and Community Investment Study 
Public Participation Plan, June 2020
The Housing and Community Investment Study (HCIS) included a public 
participation plan (PPP), outlining goals and engagement strategies for 
outreach. The HCIS PPP acknowledged the need to identify community-
supported solutions, and that a broad spectrum of stakeholders 
warrants varied methods of outreach. One of the goals of the HCIS PPP 
placed particular emphasis on outreach to typically under-serviced or 
underrepresented populations in the City, such as Spanish speakers, 
youth/students, seniors, and disadvantaged community members.

The outreach conducted as a part of the HCIS process included two 
phases comprised the following activities:

• HCIS specific webpage, with electronic comment
form and draft/final documents posted for access  
https://www.escondido.org/hcis 

• Virtual workshops held in July 2020 and October 2020
– Direct mailers, electronic e-blasts, and electronic

flyers for the workshops in English and Spanish, and
specific to residents and businesses

– Recording of the virtual meetings posted to the
webpage

• Article in Coast News, dated July 28, 2020
• Planning Commission and City Council meetings/status

updates
• Online Survey in English and Spanish

Outreach conducted under the HCIS PPP included two (2) workshops 
with a total of 23 attendees and seven (7) public comments, as well as 
a business survey to 109 business recipients within the proposed East 
Valley	Specific	Plan	area,	with	a	total	of	43	responses.

City of Escondido Aerial. Source: City of Escondido, Spring 2021

https://www.escondido.org/hcis


Draft | Chapter 3 | 21 

Community Outreach Plan for the Climate 
Action Plan Update, June 2018
The 2018 Climate Action Plan (CAP) update included a community 
outreach	plan	 that	defined	 the	goals	 and	principles	of	 engagement,	
detailed how the public would be involved in the process, and 
outlined an outreach program. The outreach program focused on key 
milestones within the CAP update to trigger outreach and information 
sharing	 through	 specific	 outreach	 tools.	 The	 outreach	 tools	 listed	
include best practices, such as going out into the community instead of 
relying	on	the	community	to	come	to	city	facilities	and	utilizing	existing	
communication	networks;	as	well	as	notification	lists	for	disseminating	
information; press releases; and CEQA notices.

The outreach conducted as a part of the HCIS process spanned approximately 
five	months,	and	included	two	phases	with	the	following	activities:

• CAP specific webpage  
https://www.escondido.org/climate-action-plan-
documents.aspx 

• Public workshop held on July 30, 2018 
• Six (6) E-Newsletters
• Eight (8) Mobile workshops
• 12 Planning Commission and four (4) City Council meetings/

status updates 

Outreach conducted under the CAP outreach program touched over 
21,000 electronic recipients via email blasts and newsletters to existing 
email lists maintained by the City, and 251 individuals in person via 
the mobile workshops, July 30, 2018 workshop, and public meetings. 
During	these	efforts,	the	City	obtains	a	total	of	43	informational	surveys	
and	42	CAP	specific	worksheets.

Old Escondido Neighborhood Group. Source: City of Escondido, Spring 2021

https://www.escondido.org/climate-action-plan-documents.aspx
https://www.escondido.org/climate-action-plan-documents.aspx


Draft | Chapter 3 | 22 

Based on the data shown under Sections 
3.1 and 3.2, Escondido is a highly diverse 
community. Escondido and greater San 
Diego County have similar median ages and 
number of residents that speak a language 
other than English at home, illustrating 
that Escondido mirrors some countywide 
attributes. However, the median household 
income and percent of those without health 
care coverage are both lower than the overall 
countywide area, conveying that Escondido 
has lower income households who may 
lack access to employment that includes 
healthcare	 benefits	 (i.e.,	 lower	 paying	 jobs).	
Escondido’s population is a majority Hispanic 
in comparison to any other race or ethnicity, 
unlike the countywide area. As persons of 
color comprise the majority of the City’s 
population (60%), coupled with lower median 
household incomes, an inference can be 
made that environmental justice issues most 
likely exist within the community. A higher 
percentage of people without health care 
coverage suggests that EJ policies are crucial 
to ensuring fair treatment. 

When framed all together--the demographic 
data,	 the	definition	of	EJ,	 the	safety	topics	 in	
the Community Protection chapter, as well 
as the past outreach plans conducted by the 
City--the communities of focus for outreach 

and engagement will include those historically 
underrepresented and underserved by 
institutions of power, such as:

• lower income communities;
• linguistically isolated communities
• communities of color 

Similar to goals found within the HCIS PPP, 
outreach and engagement must include 
translated materials for all residents, and 
interpreters should be used. With a median 
population age of mid-thirties, a concerted 

effort	 to	engage	with	both	youth	 (under	17)	
and the senior community (over 65) should 
occur. Individuals and communities of 
persons with disabilities and those who may 
be experiencing homelessness should also 
be included in this outreach and engagement 
plan, through local healthcare providers and 
advocacy groups on homelessness. 

City	 staff	 will	 conduct	 a	 preliminary	 spatial	
analysis as part of the EJ element to determine 
where potential EJ communities are located 
within the City. Once this analysis is complete, 
additional outreach and engagement will 
occur within these areas to facilitate dialogue 
based on the results, with the intent to allow 
the	 community	 to	 finalize	 the	 EJ	 community	
locations. It is important to acknowledge 
there may be areas that data mapping does 
not accurately identify (or identify entirely) 
that community members may have intimate 
knowledge of.

Overall, outreach and engagement will occur 
at	the	citywide	level,	as	well	as	pointed	efforts	
to	 connect	 with	 historically	 marginalized	
communities	 in	 an	 effort	 to	 exceed	 the	 two	
most	 recent	 outreach	 efforts	 conducted	 by	
the City’s Planning Division.

Rancho Guejito Agriculture
Source: City of Escondido, 2021 

3.4. Equity Assessment and Community Focus 



Draft | Chapter 4 | 23 

• Newspaper Noticing
The City’s Municipal Code, Chapter 33, Article 61, Division 
6 requires public noticing of a proposed general plan 
amendment. For public hearing items such as this, notice 
must be published in at least one newspaper of general 
circulation within the community at least 10 days prior to 
the scheduled public meeting. Government Code Section 
65091(a)(4) requires the newspaper notice be at least a one-
eighth page in size.

PROJECT MILESTONE: Prior to all status meetings and 
major project deliverables; public hearing for action on a 
final document (late 2022)

• CEQA Review
California Public Resources Code, Division 13 details the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) statute and 
the California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Division 6, 
Chapter 3 detail the guidelines for implementation of the 
CEQA review process. Depending on the scope of CEQA 
review applicable, certain notice requirements must be 
enacted by the City. Upon CEQA review for the 2022 GPA, 
the appropriate notification process associated with the 
level of environmental review will occur.

PROJECT MILESTONE: Summer 2022

In addition to the actions and strategies listed below, staff will attend 
meetings, and discuss with community members and stakeholders, 
as requested.

4.1. Standard Public Participation 
Requirements
State and local laws require, at a minimum, the following public noticing 
and participation opportunities for the 2022 General Plan Amendment 
(2022 GPA) process. The methods listed below will occur as a result of 
the 2022 GPA. 

• Public Meetings
The City’s Municipal Code, Chapter 33, Article 61, Division 4 
requires City Council review of amendments proposed to 
City policy documents, such as the general plan. Article 61 
requires two public hearings for a proposed general plan 
amendment—one before the City’s Planning Commission 
for recommendation to the City Council, and the second for 
decision by the City Council, consistent with State law.

PROJECT MILESTONE: Quarterly status meetings; public 
hearings for action on a final document (late 2022)

4. Actions and Strategies for Outreach and Engagement



Draft | Chapter 4 | 24 

• Native American Tribal Consultation
Senate Bill (SB) 18 requires local governments to consult with 
tribes prior to making certain planning decisions and to 
provide notice to tribes at certain key points in the planning 
process. SB 18 is required for amendments to a general plan 
and specific plans. The 2022 GPA involves an amendment 
to the City’s General Plan and so SB 18 consultation and 
noticing is required.

PROJECT MILESTONE: February 2022

Assembly Bill (AB) 52 applies to any project for which a 
CEQA Notice of Preparation, Notice of Mitigated Negative 
Declaration or Notice of Negative Declaration is filed. In 
the event that any of these notices is required pursuant to 
the required CEQA review, AB 52 noticing and consultation 
will occur.

PROJECT MILESTONE: With CEQA review (Summer 2022)

San Pascual Valley
Source: City of Escondido, Spring 2021



Draft | Chapter 4 | 25 

4. Quarterly Planning Commission Status Meetings (consult)
a.  Newspaper notices, email notification to the 2022 

GPA interested parties list, and updates to the City’s 
webpage will occur prior to scheduled meetings. 
PROJECT MILESTONE: Quarterly

5. In-person outreach (inform/consult)
a.  Engage with a captured audience via partnerships, 

such as:
i.  Outreach events at participating EUHSD schools.
ii.  Tuesday Talks at the Park Avenue Community Center.

PROJECT MILESTONE: Ongoing

6. Event Engagement (inform)
a.  Attend reoccurring events, such as the Escondido Farmer’s 

Market, to distribute information to those in attendance.
PROJECT MILESTONE: Ongoing

4.2. Notification of the 2022 General 
Plan Update process 
These are methods that the City will use to notify residents and 
other stakeholders of the 2022 GPA process. City staff will use 
these methods to advertise upcoming public workshops and events 
throughout the entire process. 

1. Webpage and social media (i.e., Instagram, Facebook, etc.) 
(inform)

a.  2022 GPA Webpage 
b.  Facebook 
c.  Instagram
d.  YouTube
e.  Nextdoor

PROJECT MILESTONE: Ongoing

2. Electronic notification to:
a.  Interested Parties Email List (inform)
b.  Existing City and External Stakeholder Email Lists 

(inform)
PROJECT MILESTONE: Ongoing

3. Mailers (inform)
PROJECT MILESTONE: Upon assessment of adequate 
budget and completion of preliminary determination of 
EJ community locations

Kit Carson Park. Source: City of Escondido, 2021 

https://www.escondido.org/2022-general-plan-amendment
https://www.facebook.com/CityofEscondido
https://www.instagram.com/cityofescondido/?hl=en
https://www.youtube.com/user/CityofEscondidoCA
https://nextdoor.com/agency-detail/ca/escondido/city-of-escondido/?utm_medium=agency_public_page&utm_source=agency_public_page


Draft | Chapter 4 | 26 

4.3. Involvement and Collaboration on 
the 2022 General Plan Update Process
Survey
The City will prepare a survey for the 2022 GPA. The goal of the 
survey will be to gauge a baseline of the community’s knowledge 
of the Community Protection chapter, environmental justice, the 
City’s General Plan, and community outreach and engagement. The 
survey will be emailed out to the 2022 GPA interested parties list, 
existing listservs maintained by the City, and be posted on the City’s 
webpage. Results from the survey will allow staff to conduct better 
collaborative events within the community and provide overall 
feedback on such topics to help guide future outreach efforts.

PROJECT MILESTONE: Ongoing

Stakeholder Roundtable Discussions
Roundtable	discussions	are	intended	to	involve	organized	stakeholders	
in the outreach and engagement process. During these discussions, 
City	staff	will	work	with	organized	stakeholders	to	identify	meaningful	
and successful methods for conducting outreach and engagement 
in communities most likely to be impacted by the updates to the 
Community Protection chapter and EJ element. During these roundtable 
discussions,	City	staff	will	provide	preliminary	mapping	analysis	of	areas	
within	the	City	that	are	likely	to	be	identified	as	EJ	communities	based	
on	guidance	provided	by	the	State,	as	well	as	maps	of	hazard	zone	areas	
within the City. Feedback from stakeholder roundtable discussions will 
be used to hone methods for outreach and engagement, establish 
additional resources for engagement, and obtain insight and feedback 
from community stakeholders.

Below is a sample list of entities that will be contacted to attend roundtable 
opportunities and is not an exhaustive list.

• Neighborhood Leadership Groups
• Education COMPACT
• Interfaith Community Services
• Vista Community Clinic (VCC)
• Escondido Creek Conservancy
• Escondido Public Schools Librarians
• Neighborhood Healthcare
• People to the Park
• Faith Leaders
• Native American Tribal Governments
• North County Climate Change Alliance
• North County Food Policy Council 
• North County Transit District (NCTD)
• North County Sierra Club Group
• San Diego Housing Federation
• San Diego Air Pollution Control District
• San Diego Food System Alliance 
• San Diego Climate Action Network
• National Association for the Advancement of Colored People (NAACP) 

PROJECT MILESTONE: March – April 2022
 
At-large Community Workshops
Community workshops are intended to provide a space for community 
members to attend (in person or virtually) to learn about environmental 
justice and the City’s Community Protection Chapter of the General Plan. 
These workshops will include, but not be limited to, educational and 
interactive components such as mapping areas of concern, polling issues 
and topics of concern from community members, and providing question 
and answer forums for discussion.

PROJECT MILESTONE: May – July 2022



Draft | Chapter 4 | 27 

and location of EJ communities within the City. Focus groups allow 
community members the space and opportunity to express their views 
in a candid way, and may include expanding on discussions held at 
a larger community workshop or meeting. Examples of types of 
community	members	who	might	be	interviewed	in	a	specific	community	
focus group include local residents, decision makers, environmental 
advocates, land owners, developers, business owners, employees, 
or the education community that are tied geographically to key 
communities. In order to ensure the process is accessible, transparent, 
and accountable, focus group members and topics must be carefully 
considered and a summary of the discussion(s) will be published within 
this document during quarterly updates. 

PROJECT MILESTONE: After EJ Communities are identified 
(anticipated Summer 2022).

Environmental Justice Community Advisory 
Group
A dedicated EJ community advisory group, comprised of individuals 
who	live	and/or	work	within	identified	EJ	communities,	creates	a	formal	
way to consult with community EJ experts during this process to enable 
better	monitoring	and	implementation	of	a	EJ	element.	It	affirms	the	
importance of EJ issues for the general plan process, as well as to the 
City. Once an EJ community advisory group is established, continued 
education on EJ issues would occur for all members. The group would 
provide a space for community members to convey potential new EJ 
issues arising within their communities. An EJ community advisory 
group would not be established until preliminary mapping of EJ 
communities occurs. 

PROJECT MILESTONE: After EJ communities are identified, 
through implementation.

4.4. Collaboration and Deferment 
to Safety and Environmental Justice 
Communities 
In addition to potential methods and best practices that may come from 
the Stakeholder Roundtable Discussions, the following outreach and 
engagement	efforts	will	occur,	at	minimum.	Additional	outreach	and/or	
engagement opportunities may arise based on community feedback.  

Open Houses within Specific Communities
Open	 houses	 within	 specific	 communities	 will	 present	 information	
about	the	existing	conditions	identified	within	the	community	as	they	
pertain to EJ topics (i.e., pollution exposure, food access, etc.) and 
updates within the Community Protection chapter (i.e., evacuation 
routes, etc.). The goal of an open house is to provide potential 
alternative scenarios for the future, and to answer questions from 
participants. During an open house, community members may view 
data	and	draft	maps	in	a	casual	environment.	City	staff	will	hold	open	
houses during day, evening, and/or weekend hours to accommodate 
a range of work and family schedules. Open houses may be held at a 
church, school, community center, local business, or another location 
that is easy to reach via transit, foot, or bicycle, so that it is accessible 
for all community members. 

PROJECT MILESTONE: After EJ Communities are identified 
(anticipated Summer 2022), as needed.

Specific Community Focus Groups
The	specific	community	focus	groups	are	meant	to	engage	those	living	
and	 working	 within	 the	 preliminarily	 identified	 EJ	 communities	 for	
their insight, input, and collaboration on the content of the document 



Draft | Chapter 5 | 28 

November 2021 through January 2022 
Below	is	a	list	of	all	meetings	City	staff	attended,	beginning	November	
2021 through January 2022. With exception of the Planning Commission 
meeting	 in	 December	 2021,	 outside	 stakeholders	 organized	 and	
requested	staff’s	attendance	at	all	meetings	listed	for	discussion	on	the	
2022 General Plan Amendment.

5. Outcome of 
Community Outreach and 
Engagement 
This section of the draft plan will be updated quarterly as community 
outreach and engagement occurs. 

Date Group and/or Event Location Topics Discussed

11/29/2021 Sierra Club North County Group 
and NAACP Virtual 2022 General Plan Amendment process and overview 

and 6th Cycle Draft Housing Element

12/8/2021 Escondido Together Safe Leaders Trinity Church
2022 General Plan Amendment process and overview; 
environmental justice; green space/tree cover; 
affordable housing; outreach efforts

12/13/2021 Escondido Union High School Dist. EUHSD Offices 2022 General Plan Amendment process and overview; 
coordination for potential events within EUHSD schools

12/14/2021 Planning Commission (Kickoff 
Meeting) City Hall 2022 General Plan Amendment process and overview 

and 6th Cycle Draft Housing Element

12/20/2021 Vista Community Clinic Virtual How VCC can support outreach and 
engagement generally

1/7/2022 Juan Reynoso (City Resident) Virtual Environmental justice and compliance with 
Senate Bill 1000

1/18/2022 Healthy Escondido Coalition Meeting 
(via Vista Community Clinic) Virtual Staff attended and did not present.

1/25/2022 Escondido Community Housing 
Coalition Virtual 6th Cycle Draft Housing Element Comments

1/27/2022 San Diego Housing Federation Virtual 6th Cycle Draft Housing Element Comments



Draft | Chapter 5 | 29 

Date Group and/or Event Location Topics Discussed

2/15/2022 Healthy Escondido Coalition Virtual 2022 General Plan Amendment process and overview

2/22/2022 Escondido Community Housing 
Coalition Virtual

2022 General Plan Amendment process and overview 
and draft outreach and engagement plan. Discuss 
comment letter provided on draft outreach and 
engagement plan

2/22/2022 Planning Commission (Draft 
Outreach and Engagement Plan) City Hall Overview of draft outreach and engagement plan – 

request for input and feedback

3/9/2022 Escondido Together Safe Leaders Hidden Valley 
Zen Center Updated on where we are at in the 2022 GPA process

3/24/2022 Escondido Young Democrats Virtual 2022 General Plan Amendment process and overview

4/15/2022 Organized Stakeholder Roundtable 
Meeting Virtual 2022 General Plan Amendment Outreach and 

Engagement, best practices, goals for the 2022 GPA

4/20/2022 Organized Stakeholder Roundtable 
Meeting Virtual 2022 General Plan Amendment Outreach and 

Engagement, best practices, goals for the 2022 GPA

Spring 2022
Print ad in Escondido Recreation 

Guide (mailed to all City of 
Escondido residents)

Mail/Print 
(Page 45)

The 2022 Summer Recreation Guide can be found here:
https://issuu.com/escondidorecreation/docs/summer_
guide_2022_final

February 2022 through April 2022

https://issuu.com/escondidorecreation/docs/summer_guide_2022_final
https://issuu.com/escondidorecreation/docs/summer_guide_2022_final


Draft | Chapter 5 | 30 

May 2022 through July 2022
(forthcoming)

August 2022 through October 2022
(forthcoming)

November 2022 through December 2022
(forthcoming)



Draft | Chapter 6 | 31 

6. Frequently
Asked Questions
(FAQs)
(forthcoming) 



Draft | Chapter 7 | 32 

Governor’s	Office	of	Planning	and	Research	(OPR).	(n.d.).	Chapter	3:	
Community Engagement and Outreach. General Plan Guidelines 
and Technical Advisories. https://opr.ca.gov/docs/OPR_C3_
final.pdf 

Office	of	the	State	Fire	Marshal.	(2022).	Fire	Hazard	Severity	Zones.	
https://osfm.fire.ca.gov/divisions/community-wildfire-
preparedness-and-mitigation/wildfire-prevention-
engineering/fire-hazard-severity-zones/

SANDAG. (2020). Escondido [DataSurfer]. Retrieved from https://
datasurfer.sandag.org/dataoverview 

U.S.	Census	Bureau.	(2019).	Escondido	city,	California.	
Retrieved from https://data.census.gov/cedsci/
profile?g=1600000US0622804

U.S.	Census	Bureau.	(2019).	San	Diego	County,	California.	
Retrieved from https://data.census.gov/cedsci/
profile?g=0500000US06073 

Additional definitions of environmental 
justice:

• California Environmental Protection Agency (CalEPA):  
https://calepa.ca.gov/envjustice/

• US EPA:  
https://www.epa.gov/environmentaljustice/learn-about-
environmental-justice 

• Detroiters Working for Environmental Justice:  
https://detroitenvironmentaljustice.org/what-is-
environmental-justice/

7. References and 
Resources
Ascent Environmental. ( June 2018). FINAL Community Outreach Plan 

for	the	Climate	Action	Plan	Update	City	of	Escondido.	Climate	
Action Plan Documents. https://www.escondido.org/Data/
Sites/1/media/PDFs/Planning/ClimateActionPlan/
CAPUpdate/EscondidoCAP_CommunityOutreachPlan_
FINAL.pdf

CEJA and Placeworks. (October 2017). SB 1000 Implementation Toolkit 
Planning for Health Communities. SB 1000 Toolkit: Planning for 
Health Communities. https://caleja.org/2017/09/sb-1000-
toolkit-release/

City of Escondido. (June 20, 2018). FINAL Community Outreach 
Plan	for	the	Climate	Action	Plan	Update.	Climate	Action	Plan	
Documents. https://www.escondido.org/Data/Sites/1/
media/PDFs/Planning/ClimateActionPlan/CAPUpdate/
EscondidoCAP_CommunityOutreachPlan_FINAL.pdf 

City of Escondido. (June 10, 2020). Housing and Community 
Investment Study Public Participation Plan. Housing 
and Community Investment Study. https://www.
escondido.org/Data/Sites/1/media/PDFs/Planning/
EastValleySpecificPlan2020/HCISPPPJune102020.pdf

Gonzalez,	R.	(n.d.).	The	Spectrum	of	Community	Engagement	to	
Ownership. https://www.facilitatingpower.com/spectrum_
of_community_engagement_to_ownership

https://opr.ca.gov/docs/OPR_C3_final.pdf
https://opr.ca.gov/docs/OPR_C3_final.pdf
https://osfm.fire.ca.gov/divisions/community-wildfire-preparedness-and-mitigation/wildfire-prevention-engineering/fire-hazard-severity-zones/
https://osfm.fire.ca.gov/divisions/community-wildfire-preparedness-and-mitigation/wildfire-prevention-engineering/fire-hazard-severity-zones/
https://osfm.fire.ca.gov/divisions/community-wildfire-preparedness-and-mitigation/wildfire-prevention-engineering/fire-hazard-severity-zones/
https://datasurfer.sandag.org/dataoverview
https://datasurfer.sandag.org/dataoverview
https://data.census.gov/cedsci/profile?g=1600000US0622804
https://data.census.gov/cedsci/profile?g=1600000US0622804
https://data.census.gov/cedsci/profile?g=0500000US06073
https://data.census.gov/cedsci/profile?g=0500000US06073
https://calepa.ca.gov/envjustice/
https://www.epa.gov/environmentaljustice/learn-about-environmental-justice
https://www.epa.gov/environmentaljustice/learn-about-environmental-justice
https://detroitenvironmentaljustice.org/what-is-environmental-justice/
https://detroitenvironmentaljustice.org/what-is-environmental-justice/
https://www.escondido.org/Data/Sites/1/media/PDFs/Planning/ClimateActionPlan/CAPUpdate/EscondidoCAP_CommunityOutreachPlan_FINAL.pdf
https://www.escondido.org/Data/Sites/1/media/PDFs/Planning/ClimateActionPlan/CAPUpdate/EscondidoCAP_CommunityOutreachPlan_FINAL.pdf
https://www.escondido.org/Data/Sites/1/media/PDFs/Planning/ClimateActionPlan/CAPUpdate/EscondidoCAP_CommunityOutreachPlan_FINAL.pdf
https://www.escondido.org/Data/Sites/1/media/PDFs/Planning/ClimateActionPlan/CAPUpdate/EscondidoCAP_CommunityOutreachPlan_FINAL.pdf
https://caleja.org/2017/09/sb-1000-toolkit-release/
https://caleja.org/2017/09/sb-1000-toolkit-release/
https://www.escondido.org/Data/Sites/1/media/PDFs/Planning/ClimateActionPlan/CAPUpdate/EscondidoCAP_CommunityOutreachPlan_FINAL.pdf
https://www.escondido.org/Data/Sites/1/media/PDFs/Planning/ClimateActionPlan/CAPUpdate/EscondidoCAP_CommunityOutreachPlan_FINAL.pdf
https://www.escondido.org/Data/Sites/1/media/PDFs/Planning/ClimateActionPlan/CAPUpdate/EscondidoCAP_CommunityOutreachPlan_FINAL.pdf
https://www.escondido.org/Data/Sites/1/media/PDFs/Planning/EastValleySpecificPlan2020/HCISPPPJune102020.pdf
https://www.escondido.org/Data/Sites/1/media/PDFs/Planning/EastValleySpecificPlan2020/HCISPPPJune102020.pdf
https://www.escondido.org/Data/Sites/1/media/PDFs/Planning/EastValleySpecificPlan2020/HCISPPPJune102020.pdf
https://www.facilitatingpower.com/spectrum_of_community_engagement_to_ownership
https://www.facilitatingpower.com/spectrum_of_community_engagement_to_ownership


Draft | Chapter 7 | 33 

Veronica Morones, Senior Planner
760-839-4548

Vmorones@escondido.org

https://www.escondido.org/2022-general-plan-amendment

https://www.escondido.org/2022-general-plan-amendment


Agenda Item No.: H.2 
Date:  July 26, 2022   

DATE: July 26, 2022 

TO: Planning Commissioners 

FROM:  Adam Finestone, City Planner 

SUBJECT: Planning Commission By-Laws 

Pursuant to section 20-8 of the Escondido Municipal Code, the Planning Commission is given the 
authority to adopt its own rules of procedure, which it did through adoption of by-laws in 2018. A 
copy of those by-laws have been attached to this memo for reference (Attachment 1). Over the 
past several years, staff from the Planning Division and City Attorney’s office have identified a 
few issues with the by-laws as adopted, and have also been made aware of areas of concern by 
members of the Commission. 

Staff will be drafting revisions to the by-laws and has identified the following topics to be 
addressed: 

- Role and responsibilities of the Planning Commission secretary
- Public testimony
- Public contact with commissioners
- Meeting time
- Setting of agenda
- Distribution of agenda materials

Staff would like to understand any additional concerns that commissioners would like to be taken 
into consideration as part of the revision process.  

Finally, please note that staff will be looking at recent updates adopted by the City Council 
(September 2021) related to their rules of procedure for guidance in this process, so it is likely 
that additional revisions may be identified beyond those described above.  

Attachment: 
1. Escondido Planning Commission By-Laws dated October 23, 2018



ATTACHMENT 1 

ESCONDIDO PLANNING COMMISSION BY-LAWS 

ADOPTED BY PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 2018-01 

October 23, 2018 

Advisory bodies play an important role in City government by assisting and advising the City 

Council in formulating and implementing policy.  Advisory bodies also develop recommendations 

and present supporting information to the City Council.  

The Escondido Planning Commission (“Commission”) is established in accordance with Section 

20-1 of Chapter 20 of the Escondido Municipal Code.

ARTICLE I. OBJECTIVES 

The Commission serves in an advisory capacity to the City Council on land use policy planning 

matters, which guide the future development of the City. The Commission has final approval 

authority on certain cases and recommends action to the City Council on others. Areas of focus 

include: 

 Providing citizen input by being positive representatives of the City Council and community;

 Conducting a detailed review of all types of development projects and individual land use

requests, such as subdivision maps, specific plans, conditional use permits, planned

developments, and appeals of administrative approvals, as well as others; and

 Assisting the Council in the formulation of policies and ordinances that implement the

General Plan, such as amendments to the Zoning Code, the adoption of new code sections,

changes to the existing zoning text and maps, etc.

The Commission has the authority to make final decisions in some cases; some decisions may 

be appealed to the City Council.  The Commission is not involved in the administration or 

operation of City departments.  They should not contact the media or speak on behalf of the 

advisory body unless authorized to do so.  The scope of authority of the Commission are those 

powers and duties delegated to the Commission by the City Council, set forth by provisions of the 

Municipal Code, and adopted hereto.  In all matters of parliamentary procedure not specifically 

governed by these by-laws or otherwise required by law, the current edition of Robert’s Rules of 

Order shall apply. 



Escondido Planning Commission By-Laws 
Effective Date: November 3, 2018 

2 

ARTICLE II.  OFFICERS 

The officers of the Commission shall consist of a Chair, a Vice-Chair and a Secretary.  The 

appointment of officers for Chair and Vice-Chair shall be held on the regular meeting date in April 

of each year, or the next regular meeting if no regular meeting is held in April, and the newly 

elected officers shall immediately preside upon election.   

A. Chair:  The Chair must preside at and conduct all meetings of the Commission, administer

all rules of the Commission, and rule upon other business transacted by the Commission.

The Vice-Chair shall, in the absence of the Chair, exercise all responsibilities of the Chair.

The Chair shall have the following duties:

1. The Chair shall preside at meetings of the Commission.

2. When authorized by the Commission, the Chair shall execute in its name all

communications of the Commission, all recommendations to the City Council,

as well as any contracts, bonds, or other obligations.

3. The Chair must appoint all committees and subcommittees.

4. The Chair shall have general supervision of the conduct of the affairs of the

Commission and shall instruct the Secretary in conducting Commission

business.

5. The Chair shall have the discretion to set time limits on individual public

speakers, not to exceed three (3) minutes.

6. The Chair shall preserve order and decorum at all meetings of the Commission.

7. The Chair is responsible for moving the discussion forward involving all

members of the Commission and allowing for adequate public participation.

8. The Chair facilitates meeting protocol.

9. The Chair shall, when called upon, represent or appoint one of the members

to represent the Commission before the City Council. Such representation shall

reflect the view of the majority of the Commission on any particular matter upon

which the Commission has acted.

B. Vice-Chair:  The Vice-Chair shall perform the duties of the Chair during the absence or

disability of the Chair.

C. Temporary Chair:  In the absence of both the Chair and Vice-Chair at any meeting, the

Commission shall appoint a Chair pro-tem to conduct that meeting.  In the absence of the

Chair and Vice-Chair, the Planning Commission Secretary shall call the meeting to order

and immediately call for a motion to select a Chair pro-tem whom shall perform the duties

of the Chair during the absence or disability of the Chair and Vice-Chair.

D. Secretary:  The Director of the Community Development Department shall determine who

serves as the Secretary to the Commission. The Secretary may, in performance of the



Escondido Planning Commission By-Laws 
Effective Date: November 3, 2018 

3 

Secretary’s duties, appoint a Deputy Secretary to perform the secretarial function for the 

Commission in the Secretary’s absence. 

 The Secretary or the Secretary’s designee shall have the following duties: 

1. The Secretary shall attend all regular and special meetings and keep or

supervise the keeping of a record of same and transcribe same properly to

preserve the records thereof.

2. The Secretary shall have charge of all official books, papers, maps, and

records of the Commission and shall conduct all official correspondence

relative to hearings, meetings, and other business of the Commission.

3. The Secretary shall prepare the agenda and staff reports for items of business

on the Commission’s agenda.

4. The Secretary shall notify the Vice-Chair, by phoning or in person, on the day

the Chair informs the Secretary that he will not attend a future Commission

meeting.

E. Parliamentarian:  A representative from the Office of the City Attorney shall act as

Parliamentarian for the Commission and may be called upon by the Chair to rule on

motions or decisions made.  Only the Parliamentarian, other than the Chair, may

proactively intervene on matters of procedure or other legal matters as determined by the

Parliamentarian.

ARTICLE III.  COMMITTEES AND SUBCOMMITTEES 

A. Creation:  Committees and subcommittees shall be appointed by the Chair at the time

deemed necessary or advisable so as to conduct Commission business properly.  Each

committee shall consist of no fewer than two (2) and no more than three (3) Commission

members.  The members of committees shall serve for the duration of the committee

unless a reassignment is made of the committee personnel by the Chair, in which case

they shall serve until their successors are appointed.  The Commission Chair shall fill any

vacancy in committees.

B. Reporting Obligations:  All reports of committees and subcommittees shall be made at

the direction of the Chair; however, no committee shall be required to make a formal report

prior to the next regular Commission meeting following that meeting at which the

committee was directed by the Chair of the Commission to report on the matter of business

referred to such committee.  Reports of committees and subcommittees shall be made

orally or in writing.  If in writing, the original copy thereof shall be filed with the Secretary

and become a part of the administrative record.



Escondido Planning Commission By-Laws 
Effective Date: November 3, 2018 

4 

ARTICLE IV.  MEETINGS – REGULAR AND SPECIAL 

The Commission may hold two (2) types of meetings: regular and special meetings. 

A. Schedule:  The Commission shall prepare and adopt an annual schedule of regular

meetings.  The Planning Commission holds regular meetings on the 2nd and 4th Tuesday

of each month, at 7:00 p.m.  Special meetings of the Commission may be called by the

Chair or by any two (2) members upon written request to the Chair.  Special meetings

shall be coordinated with the City Council’s schedule so referrals of reports and plans to

the City Council can be timely.

B. Location:  The official meeting place of the Commission shall be in the Council Chambers

of the City of Escondido, California.  All regular and special meetings shall be held there

or at a location as determined by the Secretary and at such times as the Commission may,

by a majority vote of those present at any regular or special meeting, otherwise direct.

ARTICLE V.  MEETING BUSINESS 

All meetings of the Commission shall be conducted in an orderly manner designed to expedite 

the business of the Planning Commission.  The current edition of Robert’s Rules of Order shall 

provide the basis for meeting structure and official decisions shall be made by motion and vote of 

the Commission, as herein specified, unless stated otherwise in Commission resolutions or in City 

Ordinances.   

A. Meeting Order:  The Secretary is authorized to place items on agendas that are

generated by City administrative requirements, laws, or City ordinances.  Only those cases

set for hearing on a given date will be heard and they shall be heard in the order in which

they appear on the agenda unless otherwise directed by the Chair.

B. Motion:  Any Commissioner may offer a motion for Commission action.  For each time a

first motion is made, the Chair should restate the motion.  The Chair should solicit a second

of the motion.

C. Discussion on the Motion:  No recall of speakers for questions may occur when a motion

is on the floor.  When the Chair determines that there has been enough discussion, the

debate may be closed, and the item can be put to a vote.  After the vote, the Chairman

should announce the decision.

D. Planning Commission Action:  The Planning Commission shall act by motion, motion

to adopt resolution, or may give direction to staff by consensus (minute order).  A majority

of voting members present is required for a motion to be approved.  In case of a tie vote,

or deadlock, the Chair shall have the item of business placed on the next agenda of the



Escondido Planning Commission By-Laws 
Effective Date: November 3, 2018 

5 

 Commission as a matter for reconsideration and vote, but not for rehearing.  If the 

returned matter again results in a tied vote it will be forwarded to the City Council with no 

recommendation.  

E. Agenda Packets:  The Secretary is responsible for the preparation of the meeting

agenda.  Every matter on which the Commission is authorized or required to act or brought

before the Commission by any person, official, organization or agency, shall be presented

in writing or on forms provided by the Commission for a specific presentation and shall

include all information necessary for a clear understanding and informed action by the

Commission.  Such information (which includes and is not limited to maps, surveys,

drawings, plans, charts, and descriptive information) shall be transmitted as an agenda

packet to the full Commission and posted online to the Planning Commission webpage

not less than 72-hours before a scheduled meeting.

All matters for Commission consideration and recommendation shall be filed as

hardcopies in the Planning Office with the Secretary at least 72-hours prior to a meeting

of the Commission at which the item is to be on the agenda.

F. Public Testimony and Participation:

1. Speaker slips will be available in the Council Chambers to be submitted by persons

wishing to speak on an agenda item.  The normal time allowed for a person to speak

will be three (3) minutes. The Chair shall have the authority to reduce equally each

speaker's time to accommodate a larger number of speakers, or to limit the total

speakers' time on an agenda item.

2. Speaker slips for agenda items will be accepted by the Planning Commission Minutes

Clerk in the Council Chambers no earlier than one (1) hour before the meeting and up

until the public testimony on the item is finished.  At times, up to the discretion of the

Secretary, shall be the option for an individual to register support or opposition but do

not wish to speak included on the speaker slip (individual must be present).

3. Written correspondence directed to the Commission that is received prior to an agenda

packet being posted shall be held by the Secretary and included for Planning

Commission review as part of the agenda packet.  Written communications submitted

after the agenda packet is posted, but before the meeting begins, will be provided to

the Commission at the beginning of the meeting.

4. Written communications may also be presented to the Planning Commission Minutes

Clerk at Planning Commission meetings, as part of the record of the meeting and for

distribution to the Commission.

5. After the close of the public hearing, no person shall testify before the Commission

and no other new evidence shall be received by it; provided, however, this rule shall



Escondido Planning Commission By-Laws 
Effective Date: November 3, 2018 

6 

not prohibit the members of the Commission from examining any public record or 

requesting additional information from staff. 

G. Meeting Cancellation and Adjournment:  Regular meetings may be cancelled from time

to time due to a lack of business or for other reasons.  A meeting cancellation notice shall

be provided by the Secretary.

H. Meeting Minutes:  The Planning Commission Minutes Clerk is instructed to prepare

action minutes for each Planning Commission meeting.  The Planning Commission Clerk

shall add a brief description/topic for oral communication speakers and note whether the

speaker was speaking in favor or opposition to agendized items.

The Commission shall keep action minutes and records of all its meetings, resolutions,

transactions, findings and determinations, and the vote shall be recorded with each

motion, order or resolution.  Audio recordings, action minutes, records, resolutions,

transactions, findings and determinations shall be of public record and be posted online.

ARTICLE VI.  AMENDMENTS 

These Rules and By-laws may be added to, amended, or revised at any meeting of the Planning 

Commission by a majority of a quorum of the Planning Commission by proper notice in advance 

of the meeting. 


	ATTACHMENT 1 - Draft Outreach and Engagement Plan.pdf
	PLAN ORGANIZATION
	1. Introduction to this Plan
	1.1.	What is the 2022 General Plan Amendment (2022 GPA)?
	1.2.	Why is the City conducting outreach and engagement?
	1.3.	How does this document work?
	1.4.	Why one outreach and engagement plan for both documents?
	1.5.	What do you mean by “outreach” and “engagement?”
	1.6.	Outreach and Engagement Contact

	2. Goals
	2.1.	What are the Goals of this Plan?

	3. Community Snapshot & Equity Assessment
	3.1.	San Diego County Demographics
	3.2.	Escondido Demographics
	3.3.	Existing assessment of outreach
	3.4.	Equity Assessment and Community Focus 

	4. Actions and Strategies for Outreach and Engagement
	4.1.	Standard Public Participation Requirements
	4.2.	Notification of the 2022 General Plan Update process 
	4.3.	Involvement and Collaboration on the 2022 General Plan Update Process
	4.4.	Collaboration and Deferment to Safety and Environmental Justice Communities 

	5. Outcome of Community Outreach and Engagement 
	6. Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs)
	7. References and Resources





